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The cellar under the dining-room is the earliest structure. The walls
consist of roughly squared sandstone laid dry, no mortar. It may have
been the substructure of an earlier farm building, or a root cellar. The
stone structure supporting the dining-room fireplace is laid up with mortd

and was evidently built some time after the cellar wzlls.,

The beams supporting the dining-room floor are oak logs slightly adzed
flat on top to accommodate the floor boards. These logs are much earlier
than the floor boards and were probably part of the farm building or a
support for the top of the root cellar,

This cellar had two entrances from outside with steps leading down from
ground level., The wall of the cellar of the structure which is the siytiﬂ
room and front parlor, closed the westerly entrance. In the late 1800s a
project was begun to open the second wall and join the two cellars. This
was not finished, probably beczuse of some family situation. The Hendersd
completed the opening.

The floor beams of the sitting-room and front parlor are 10" x 11" oak,
roughly adzed square, This indicates that they are later than the oak
logs of the dining-room floor., The ceiling beams of these rooms are

9" x 11" chestnut, dressed and beaded on the bottom edges, with the excep-
tion of the oak beam at the western end, which is chamfered for T'6",
centrally, over the original fireplace., At each end of the chamfer, stub
ibeams are mortised into this oak beam and extend into the end wall., Thesd
stub beams and the chamfered portion of oak ceiling beam are smoke black-
encd.

A hand-split lath and plaster ceiling had been added, covering the beams,
This ceiling, 1like 211 others, was badly deteriorated and had to be removd
Upon removal, there were many evidences that the beams were originally
exposed, and the split lath and plaster ceiling put on at a much later
date,

The kitchen fireplace had been closed, possibly in the late 1800s, with
sheet iron., A coal range was in front of the fireplace, its flue pipe
enteping the fireplace flue near the ceiling. The crane with J hooks and
iron ring was found intact in the fireplace, evidence that
there had been a mantel and wood panel up #p. % On this assump-
tion, the liendersons built a mantel and éxrlgt)ﬂgﬁs i only structur-
al change or addition that has been mad 4%ﬁ§§g§ Ebugg,}~ Sy
d

In the‘kitchen, for the purpose of insu ~%i Qaaéy Yo

mounting shelves, wood paneling above t é}wind§w Y le
replace the deteriorated plaster., With i exxepd o
labove the window sill level and the mante ?§§g\pane 3
woodwork in the kitchen is original, "““Tis/,

The front wall, from the front door to the western'ébrner, had collapsed,

The entire west end wall was cracked, bulged; and unstable. These were
taken down and relaid with the o;iginal stones,

nience in

was used to
is paneling

1ie fireplace all

The two front windows of the front parlor were completely lost, together
with the wood embrasures and trim. The sashes of these windows are new
(see continuation sheet)
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This was a farm house built by ordinary people, occupied by successive
generations of their descendants who prospered as farmers. This is
one of the two oldest houses in Newark. The Sydenhams added to their
farmland acreage and enlarged the house in successive generations as
needed.

The historic marker, placeéin front of the house in 1966 by the State
Department of Conservation and Economic Development states: 'One of
the oldest structures in Newark., Built in 18th century, this house is
a prime example of early American ingenuity in architecture,"”

Highlights of,Sydenham genealo
John Sydenham cordwainer, born 169-, died intestate 17——; married

Susannah Handcock, daughier of Edward Handcock, an, in 1711,

Samuel, died intestate and unmarried 1759.

On February 21, 1711 Edward Handcock of Newark transacted a gift-
deed to his son-in-law John Sydenham of 4 acres of land. On June
18,1711 John Sydenham bought 4 acres of land of Joseph Jones,
yogman, of Newark, on the road leading to the mountain. On July

s 1717, a land transaction was made between John Godon of Newark
and John,Sydenham. (Many other land transactions by this John Syden
John Sydenham” (or Sidnham) born March 16, 1714, married Martha Longworth

December 8, 1741. She was born Aucust 23, 1724 and died May 12,
1804. He was chosen 1 of 4 Surveyors of Highways. They had seven
children,

Thomas Sydenham (or Sidenham), son of John®and Martha Longworth, born

Pohn Sidman’son of Thomas and Sarah, born July 5, 17

fovember 4, 1753, died august 12, 1816; married Sarrah Fordham in
October 1779. She was born December 14, 1753, died in 1816. Thomad
was named one of the Overseers of Highw8¥s in 1789, 1798, and 1805.
There were seven children including David, born August Zé 1794,

died 1825, unmarried; who apparently 1n1tlated the Si L_spelling,
refu512g to sign his name any other way. §

1859, married sugust 1817 Amelia Baker, daugh

They had eight children, 4 5* S
John Edgar Sidman-son of John Sidman’and Amelia BaKer, bg@n t A

1829; died March 4, 1894, married Mary France Ammérm@ﬁ}é@rll;
On November 25, 1879 John Edgar Sidman was dec 'r‘. ké

They had two sons: John"born March 16, 1714, died November 1, 1754
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C. G,
Registrar of Deeds, Hall of Records,

of the Board of Women Managers of
Jersey,

vorld's Columbian Exposition.

Charles Carroll Gardner manuscripts of kutgers Library—-New Brunswick.
Hine "Woodside, the North End of Newark, N.J." printed in 1909

Newark, N.J.

Greener Papers, New Jersey Historical Society, 230 Broadway, Newark, N.J.

New Jersey Archives, State Library, Trenton—1lst Series Vol, 32
Calendar of wWills 1751-60; and lst Series Vol. 39 Calendar of Wills
1801-05; and 1st Series Vol, 42 Calendar of Wills 1814-1817.

"Official Descriptive Catalog of Colonial and Revolutionary Relics now
in Possession of the Citizens of New Jersey," compiled by Authority

the Exhibit of the State of New
1893, n. 107
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Dorland and Elizabeth Henderson

ORGANIZATION
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STREET AND NUMBER:

01d koad to Bloomfield

CITY OR TOWN:
Newark

STATE CODE

New Jersey

</

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:
National [] State [ Local X7

/3N

Title Ac ng Commissioner, Dept. of
Conservation and Economic Development

—

pate February 27, 1970

I herebv certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preser

o,

Keeper of Th7National Regist%

JUL

Date

8 1970
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(Number all entries) Dy denham House, UOld Road to Bloomfield, NewarkK, N.d. O7]
Location

#e

#6 Surveys

#1

#8

According to the Tax Assessor's Offlce, the original name of the street
was 0ld Road to Bloomfield. In the 1926 map herewith, the name is the
corrupkd form of 0ld Bloomfield Roadj; showing the then-projected
Branch Brook Park. At the time of the HABS survey in 1936 when the
{isses Topping lived in the house (owned at that time by G. Rae Lewis),
they used the present dining-room door with a path leading out to
DeGraw Avenue with street number 720, When the Hendersons bought the
house in 1954 and took occupancy in 1955, they bought only half of the
Lewis holding which cut the house off from DeGraw, and reestablished thdg
front door facing the 0ld Road to Bloomfield. The deed to the property
read "0ld Road to Bloomfield now called First Street." They secured
affirmation from the City of Newark that this was, indeed, the 0ld Road
to Bloomfield and the sign at the corner of &lwood and Branch Brook
Park was changed back to the original name.

liistoric Sites and Buildings Committee 1960 Local
Newark Library, Washington Street, Newark, N.J. 07102

New Jersey listoric Sites Inventory ,#2186.15

Historic Sites Office

State Department of Conservation & Economic Development
Box 1420

Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Description—Physical Appearance

and the trim is an accurate reproduction of the original by a local
lumber mill, The sashes of the window in the west wall of the front
parlor are new, but the trim and embrasure were salvaged and reinstalled
in the rebuilt wall. All window sashes, embrasures and trim in the

rear parlor are original.

There were the remains of & roof of cedar shakes over the beehive oven
projecting from the kitchen wall. The pine shakes in the 4_roof
were split and laid by Mr. Henderson.

In their restoration.efforts, the Hendersons have 2hlish
what appeared to be the original appearance of thwa )
as much as possible. liodern conveniences have bekh 'ﬁ% b8!

essentials and made as inconspicuous as feaS1b1e.;ﬂ
Significance——=Genealogy

Albert Thomas Sldman born September 24, 1822, dlec"

son of John Sidman'and Amelia Baker. Albert marrie¥:-
on December 24, 1855. She remarried Hobbs and died el
They had daughters Ida Blanche, born 1858, died April 2, 1865

inna Belle, born 1862, died 1903

Laura, born December 6, 1866, died Uctober 17, 1952.
Laura was the last known of the direct Sydenham line. She had her
name legally changed from Sidman back to Sydenham. She was a school
principal in Plainfield, New Jersey; apparently a person of strong

character and an active participant in community affairs,
RRHHH
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Sydenham House

01d Road to Bloomfield - g®
Newark, N.J. \$«>Q
Code: state - 29, county - 013 AN

#6. New Jersey Historic Sites Inventory #2186.15, Dept. of Environmental
Protection, Box 1L20, Trenton, N.J.

#8. Situated in one of the most highly urbanized cities in the United

States, this house has stood for over 250 years as an example of an early
American homestead and is possibly the oldest house within the present bounds
of Newark. A forerunner of the salt-box type of architecture, it was for
many years the testing ground for every different phasg, _%American construct-
ional style. s T

L e

The history of the Sydenham House parallels that of Newark. It had
existed years before the very chartering of the city. 1In 1711 Newark was
a new and flourishing settlement founded less than 50 years before under the
leadership of Robert Treat and his small group of pioneers.

One of the early settlers who reportedly came over with Treat in 1666 was
Fdward Handcook who later became a prominent Newark landowner. Handcook's
only daughter, Susannah, met and eloped with John Sydenham, a young EFnglishman,
Her father's objections were assuaged when he learned that John was the heir of
a rich and influential family in Britain,

Edward Handcook deeded the young couple two grants of land in northern
Newark on which the "Sydenham House" was built. The deed refers to the property
as four acres on the "highway to Acquacanong" and six acres on the "highway to
Waterrson"., "Waterrson" and "Acquacanong" refer to Blcomfield and Passaic
respectively.

The Sydenham House is a prime example of early American ingenuity in
architecture, The House is built on stone foundations with overlapping beams
of oak and pine, Many of those beams are the original timbers, cut from the
surrounding forests nearly 250 years ago and they still aid in keeping the
house on its firm basis.

John and Susannah added a second part to the house consisting of three
rooms: the present living room,kitchen and possibly the pantry. The front
roof was supposed to have been raised in pre-Revolutionary days and that
caused the building to take on the "salt-box" image which was soon to become
the major architectural style of the day. In lQQQ‘this image was destroyed
when a descendant of the family allowed the back to be raised. The house is
today as it was in that year when the last major innovation was made, This
homestead, held by the Sydenham family for over 200 years, is the only exist-
ing legacy of these pioneer settlers who later achieved prominence in the
community.

#
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